
 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, August 21, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

Zoom Meeting ID:  892 7003 2156 
 

****A G E N D A**** 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance (led by Girl Scout Troop 5072) 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to the Agenda 
6) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of August 7, 2023 
8) Old Business 
9) New Business 

A.  Girl Scout Troop 5072 
B.  Audit 2022 Presentation 
C.  Resolution 23-30 Fall Fest & Pumpkin Roll 2023 
D.  LBE Department Update 
E.  DPW Garage Roof Replacement 
F.  Water Plant Chlorine Equipment 
G.  City Clerk/Treasurer Training September 
H.  Committee Appointments 
 I.   Financials 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
12) Management Report 
13) Committee Reports 

A.  Dock #3 
B.  SAEMS Authority/SAEMS Council 

14) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
 
 

The City of St. Ignace is an equal-opportunity employer and provider  
 



 
City of St. Ignace 

Council Proceedings 
(Unofficial) 

 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, August 7, 2023, in the 
City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference 
available.  Mayor LaLonde called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Gustafson led the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor 
LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, and Councilmember Williford. 
 
ABSENT:  Councilmember Pelter.  It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by 
Councilmember Cronan, to approve excusing Councilmember Pelter from the meeting due to a 
work conflict.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Andrea Insley, City Clerk-Treasurer; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Kevin 
James, Police Chief; Scott Marshall, DDA Director; Cathy Lamb, Facility & Recreation Manager; 
Shirley Sorrels, Museum Director. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA  
Mayor LaLonde – Dock #3 Discussion. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3-min limit) 
Public comment was received commending Scott Marshall as DDA Director. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 24, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING: 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
the minutes of the July 24, 2023, Regular Council meeting as presented.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
No Old Business was discussed. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  POLICE DEPARTMENT UPDATE 
 
Police Chief James requested that this item be postponed to the August 21st Regular Council 
meeting. 
 
B.  DDA DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT & CONTRACT 
 
DDA Director Marshall introduced Ryan Sigmon as the new DDA Director hired for the City of 
St. Ignace.  The DDA Board approved the hiring on August 1st and the employment contract on 
August 7th for Mr. Sigmon.  After some discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, 
seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve the hiring of Ryan Sigmon as DDA Director 
and the employment contract as presented. 
 



Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, 
         Councilmembers Williford and Cronan.  
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
  
C.  RESOLUTION 23-27 TREK THE YOOP 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE TREK THE MIGHTY YOOP 2023 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Cronan, supported by 
Councilmember Gustafson: 
 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to sponsor and 

conduct the “Trek the Mighty Yoop 2023”; and 
 
WHEREAS: This event requires the usage of the St. Ignace Little Bear East Arena and 

parking lots; and  
 
WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, the “Peddler’s Ordinance”, 

requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 
 
WHEREAS:  It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 

the City; and 
 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Visitors 

Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

 
BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for Trek 

the Mighty Yoop 2023 on September 22 & 23, 2023; now further 
 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Council does approve usage of the St. Ignace Little 

Bear East Arena and parking lots for this event on Friday, September 22, 
2023.   

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  
         Williford, Cronan and Fullerton. 
No: None. 
Absent:  Councilmember Pelter 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
D.  RESOLUTION 23-28 RICHARD CRANE MEMORIAL TRUCK SHOW 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE RICHARD CRANE MEMORIAL TRUCK SHOW 2023 
 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, supported by 
Councilmember Cronan: 
 



WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to sponsor and 
conduct the “Richard Crane Memorial Truck Show 2023”; and 

 
WHEREAS: This event requires the usage of the St. Ignace Little Bear East 

Community Center and parking lots, the St. Ignace Public Marina dock 
and parking lot, Ojibwa Trail and State Street; and  

 
WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, the “Peddler’s Ordinance”, 

requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 
 
WHEREAS:  It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 

the City; and 
 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Visitors 

Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

 
BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for the 

“Richard Crane Memorial Truck Show 2023” on Thursday, September 14 
to Sunday, September 16, 2023; now further 

 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Council does approve street closures, subject to 

compliance with the City and MDOT rules and regulations, and the use of 
the following areas and dates: 

 
 Richard Crane Memorial Truck Show – September 14, 15, 16, 2023 at 

Little Bear East Community Center, St. Ignace Marina parking lot, Ojibwa 
Trail and State Street. 

 
 Event VIP reception on the St. Ignace Marina dock on Thursday, 

September 14, from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
 

Music provided on Friday, September 15, from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. at 
Little Bear East Community Center. 

 
 The Truck Show will close: 

- Little Bear East parking lots Wednesday, September 13 to Saturday, 
September 16;  

 - Ojibwa Trail from Marquette Street to Glashaw Street (not including the 
Museum parking area) from Friday, September 15 at 8:00 a.m. to 
Saturday, September 16 at dusk; 

 - State Street from Marquette Street to High Street from Friday, 
September 15 at 12:00 p.m. to Saturday, September 16 at dusk; 
- Marina front half-parking lot from Friday, September 15 through 
Saturday, September 16.   

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton  
         and Gustafson. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  Councilmember Pelter. 
Resolution declared Adopted. 



 
E.  RESOLUTION 23-29 STRAIT U.P. JEEP CREEP 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE 2023 STRAIT U.P. JEEP CREEP 
 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Cronan, supported by 
Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis: 
 

WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to conduct sponsor 
and conduct the Strait U.P. Jeep Creep 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS: This event requires the use of the St. Ignace Little Bear East Arena 

overflow parking lot; and  
 
WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 

requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 
 
WHEREAS:  It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 

the City; and 
 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Visitors 

Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

 
BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for Strait 

U.P. Jeep Creep on September 29 - 30, 2023; now further 
 
BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve use of the St. Ignace Little Bear 

East Arena overflow parking lot for this event on Saturday, September 30 
with Jeep Trunk or Treat from 12:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. then staging for the 
Haunted Trail from 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.  

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson and    
         Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  Councilmember Pelter. 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
F.  LBE FITNESS CENTER REPAIR 
 
Recreation Facility Manager Lamb informed Council that she received only one response in her 
search for bids to repair the damage to the Fitness Center portion of the building.  The bid 
received was from 2X4 Construction for $7,699.   
It was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve the 
bid from 2X4 Construction of $7,699 to repair the damage to the Fitness Center portion of the 
building.  
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde and Mayor 
         Pro-Tem St. Louis. 



No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
G.  CITY MANAGER TRAINING AUGUST 
 
DDA Director Marshall requested Council’s approval to attend the Michigan Economic 
Developers Association (MEDA) Workshop in Marquette on August 15th & 16th in reference to 
his position as City Manager. 
It was moved by Councilmember Fullerton, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
the training for Mr. Marshall as City Manager. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem  
         St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mayor LaLonde – Dock #3 Discussion 
Councilmember Cronan provided a packet of information to Council that included the most 
recent leases for Dock #3.  After some discussion, it was the consensus of Council to schedule 
a Dock #3 Committee meeting to discuss the use of the property near the boat launch parking 
lot.  
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley informed Council that there were two invoices that were incorrectly 
stated on the list of bills sent out in Council packets, making the total to approve $152,420.17.  
The corrected list was presented at the meeting.  Councilmember Gustafson inquired about the 
invoice from Management & Behavior Consultants, PLLC for $880, and the payment to Denise 
& David Freed for $3,400.  Mayor LaLonde noted the invoice from Blarney Castle for Marina fuel 
and requested that Marina Director Stearns prepare a department update for the next Council 
meeting. 
It was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to approve 
paying the bills in the amount of $152,420.17. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis,  
         Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3 min limit) 
Public comment was received commending Police Chief James. 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley informed Council that the City has been notified of the award from 
the Michigan Protect MI Pension Grant providing the award notice and signed agreement. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
No committee reports were received. 



COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmember comments were received. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



City of St. Ignace, Michigan

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GRAPHIC PRESENTATION

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC
16978 S. Riley Avenue
Kincheloe, Michigan 49788



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
A s s e t s  a n d  D e f e r re d  O u t f l o w s  
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

Cash and
Equivalents -
Unrestricted

Cash and
Equivalents -

Restricted

Cash Held by
Fiscal Agent -

Restricted

Accounts
Receivable -

Net

Due From
Governmental

Units

Prepaid Items Inventories Capital Assets
- Net

Deferred
Outflows

Total

2022 $5,712,512 $1,921,193 $254,875 $1,281,520 $155,432 $- $67,287 $29,705,334 $1,532,685 $40,630,838
2021 $5,450,319 $1,743,449 $254,875 $417,491 $132,414 $152,941 $151,104 $30,912,654 $984,773 $40,200,020

2022 2021

Page 1



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
L i a b i l i t i e s  a n d  D e f e r re d  I n f l o w s  
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

Accounts
Payable

Accrued
Liabilities

Accrued
Interest
Payable

Unearned
Revenue

Lease
Payable

Installment
Loans

Bonds
Payable

Net Pension
Liability

OPEB
Obligation

Vested
Employee
Benefits

Deferred
Inflows

Total

2022 $133,339 $321,308 $103,463 $127,043 $43,558 $203,940 $11,703,172 $7,769,594 $961,520 $210,887 $1,535,652 $23,113,476
2021 $251,982 $214,666 $112,695 $59,007 $53,217 $260,167 $12,323,526 $5,896,278 $2,119,667 $218,902 $666,230 $22,176,337

2022 2021

Page 2



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
N e t  P o s i t i o n
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $(5,000,000)

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

Net Investment in Capital
Assets

Restricted Unrestricted Total Net Position

2022 $17,754,664 $3,104,915 $(3,342,217) $17,517,362
2021 $18,275,744 $2,848,764 $(3,100,825) $18,023,683

2022 2021

Page 3



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
R e v e n u e s  – G e n e r a l  F u n d
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

 $2,000,000

Taxes &
Penalties

Licenses &
Permits

Federal
Sources

State Sources Local
Sources

Charges for
Services

Interest &
Rentals

Fines &
Forfeitures

Other
Revenue

Total
Revenues

2022 $1,343,832 $6,603 $1,500 $289,066 $28,111 $29,404 $28,962 $131 $252,711 $1,980,320
2021 $1,274,192 $6,287 $- $289,869 $41,605 $86,970 $29,018 $- $141,393 $1,869,334

2022 2021

Page 4



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
E x p e n d i t u re s  – G e n e r a l  F u n d
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

General
Government

Public Safety Public Works Community &
Economic

Development

Recreation &
Cultural

Capital Outlay Other
Expenditures

Total
Expenditures

2022 $733,361 $784,910 $205,190 $80,731 $118,391 $5,100 $94,588 $2,022,271
2021 $728,856 $753,130 $208,451 $77,877 $106,425 $- $64,555 $1,939,294

2022 2021

Page 5



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
G e n e r a l  F u n d  b a l a n c e
F i v e  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $1,250,000

 $1,300,000

 $1,350,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,450,000

 $1,500,000

 $1,550,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
General Fund Balance $1,547,969 $1,447,159 $1,524,497 $1,359,200 $1,376,296

Page 6



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
O p e r a t i n g  R e v e n u e s  – Wa t e r  a n d  S e w e r
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

Charges for Services Other Revenue Total Revenues
2022 $2,523,902 $28,957 $2,552,859
2021 $2,460,716 $25,940 $2,486,656

2022 2021

Page 7



City  of  St .  Ignace,  Michigan
O p e r a t i n g  E x p e n s e s  – Wa t e r  a n d  S e w e r
Tw o  Ye a r  A n a l y s i s
D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

Personnel
Services

Supplies Contracted
Services

Insurance Utilities Repairs and
Maintenance

Fuel Rental Depreciation Other
Expenses

Total
Expenses

2022 $994,211 $149,285 $95,701 $60,899 $263,220 $27,552 $21,644 $33,294 $655,056 $19,516 $2,320,378
2021 $881,416 $114,601 $108,564 $20,095 $212,974 $3,537 $- $25,526 $662,499 $43,992 $2,073,204

2022 2021

Page 8



Special Events Application - Revision 2016 Page 1 

City of St. Ignace 
Special Events Application 

Complete and return this application to the City Manager’s Office at least 21 calendar days prior to the starting date of the  event. 

A new application must be submitted each year. 

Event 

Event Name: 

Describe the Event: 

Sponsoring Organization Information 

Legal Business Name: 

Address:  State/Zip: 

Mailing Address: State/Zip: 

Telephone:   Email:   

Contact Name: Title:  

Telephone   Email:  

Contact Person on Day of Event 

Name: Title:  

Address: City  State/Zip: 

Telephone: Cell:  Email:  

Type of Event (Check one - See Special Events Policy for additional information) 

(   ) City Operated/Sponsored Event (   ) Political or Ballot Issue Event  (   ) Run Event 

(   ) Co-sponsored Event  (all parties must provide sponsoring info and sign application)  (    ) Other (describe) 

(   ) Non-Profit Event (   ) Wedding  (   ) Block Party 

(   ) For Profit Event (   ) Video or Film Production 

Event Information 
Event Location(s): 

Event Date(s): 

Event Hours: 

 

Fall Fest and Pumpkin Roll

St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce

560 N State Street St. Ignace 49781
Same

906-643-8717 director@saintignace.org
Nikki Director

906-643-8717

Amanda Ambassador
560 N State St St. Ignace MI 49781

906-298-0234 906-298-0234 apreseau@hotmail.com

x

Fall Fest
Little Bear East Arena
275 Marquette St
St. Ignace, MI 49781

September, 30, 2023

The Fall Fest is a family event to celebrate the start of fall and Halloween. The event will have 
Barrel Train Rides, Hayrides, Kids Crafts, Pizza sale, mask decorating, games, Professional photos, 
treats, pumpkin and gourd sale, contests and prizes, warming area, petting zoo, craft vendors, 
guess the weight pumpkin Inflatable, dunk tank.

director@saintignace.org

12pm-5pm
Fall Fest 12:00-3:00pm Pumpkin Roll 4:00pm-5:00pm

 Garlock / Event Coordinator

Pumpkin Roll
Goudreau Hill
Next to City Hall
St. Ingace, MI 49781

Fall Fest 9/29/23; 9/30/23 all day   Pumpkin Roll 3:00pm 09/30/23 removal 10/2/23

Kyle Brow, Amanda Garlock, Nikki St. Andrew and more volunteers will clean up during and after the event.



Special Events Application - Revision 2016 Page 2 

Event Information (continued) 

Estimated DAILY attendance: 

Describe crowd control plans for this event: 

Describe the Special Event’s impact on adjacent commercial and residential property: 

Will sidewalks be used 

Describe sidewalk use: 

(   )YES      (   )NO If yes, include a detailed map outlining the proposed sidewalk use 

Will street closures be necessary? (    ) YES (   ) NO 

If yes, include a detailed map indicating road closures, emergency vehicle access, and barricade locations 

The City of St. Ignace does not have authority to close County roads. 

Describe street closures: 

* Streets closed: Date/Time:

* Streets re-open: Date/Time:

It varies. Fall Fest 400+ throughout the day. Pumpkin Roll 200+

Fall Fest Event will be in non-traffic parking lot with ample off the main road. Pumpkin Roll
Pumpkin Roll : Godreau hill will be closed at the alleyway down to State St. to minimize and pedestrian risk. 

None. City Hall and Little Bear are not open for normal business on Saturdays and there are no residential
properties that will be impacted as well.

X

X

Godreau Hill from the alley behind City Hall to the bottom where it connects with State Street.
Please note: State St. does not need to be closed.

09/30/23   3:30 pm to 5:00pm

9/30/23     at 5:00pm



Special Events Application - Revision 20t6 Page 3 

Event Information (continued) 

Will parking lot closures be necessary? (  x   ) YES  (  )NO 

If yes, include a detailed map indicating proposed closures and barricade locations 

Describe parking lot closures: 

” Parking lot(s) closed: Date/Time: 

” Parking lot(s) re-open: Date/Time: 

What parking arrangements are proposed to accommodate attendance? 

Will music be provided/included during the event?      (    ) YES   (    ) NO 

Describe type of music proposed:          (   ) Live (   ) Amplification     (   ) Recorded     (  x ) Loudspeakers 

Proposed time music will begin: 

Proposed time music will end: 

Proposed location of live band/disc jockey/loudspeakers/equipment: 

Describe noise control: 

X

This will not be necessary as Little Bear East will offer its' parking lot .

09/30/23  9am

10/2/23 5:00pm

Little Bear East has plenty of parking for patrons in its parking lot and overflow lot. 

X

12:00pm

5:00pm

Fall Fest LBE overflow lot 12:00pm-3:30pm 
Pumpkin Roll: next to City Hall 
4:00pm-5:00pm

x



Spacial Evants Application - Revision 2016 Paga 4 

Event Information (continued) 

  Will the event require the use of any of the following municipal equipment: 

  Sponsoring organization should expect to be charged for use, placement, and maintenance of these items 

     ( x  ) Trash Receptacles     Quantity: 

     (   ) Barricades       Quantity: 

    Quantity:      (  x ) Traffic Cones   

     ( x  ) Other (describe): road 
closed signs

*Sponsoring organization may be required to provide a dumpster*

  Will the following be constructed or located in the event area? 

    No stakes of any kind allowed on asphalt 

    Item     Item 

   (x   ) Booths     (   ) Tables 
   (   ) Tents       ( x  ) Rides 

    (   ) Portable Toilets  (may be required depending on event)    (   ) 
Awnings     
(   x) 
Canopies    

 (   ) Other (describe)   

   You must attach a plan of the proposed layout.  Include the proposed 
      location of booths, tents, tables, portable toilets, rides, routes, etc.   

     Will the event have kiddie rides, inflatables (i.e. moonwalk), amusement rides, climbing walls, live 
animals, hot are balloon, etc.? 

 (   ) YES   (   ) NO   If yes, additional insurance coverage will be required

If yes, describe in detail the types of attractions proposed: 

X

X
X

X

X

Small petting Zoo with goats, rabbits, pig and mini horse, Hay ride and barrel rides. No inflatables.

5 barricades /cement stanchions



Special Events Application - Revision 20J 6 Page S 

 Event Information (continued) 

Will the event have food, beverage or concessions    (   ) YES   (    ) NO 

(See Section X of the Special Events Po/icy for health department approvals and temporary food license requirements) 

Describe: 

  Do you plan to have alcohol served at this event?  (   ) YES  (   ) NO 

* A $50.00 fee applies to special liquor license applications and Liquor Liability Insurance is required.

Include proposed location(s) on event layout and describe measures to be taken to prohibit the sale of
alcohol to minors or visibly impaired individuals

Will there be temporary electricity at this event?   (   ) YES   (   ) NO 

* An electrical permit is required. Include proposed locations on event layout

     (   ) Generators   ( x   ) Use of Light Pole Outlets   (   ) Temporary Distribution Panel 

Do you plan to have special event signs?  (  ) YES    (  ) NO

     Signs must conform to City’s ordinances 

Describe signs, proposed locations, etc. Small yard 

signs a few days before the event

Do you plan to use city entrance signs or banner 

 (   )YES  (   )NO 

If yes you must apply for use through the City Entrance Sign Ordinance/Municipal 

Banner System Policy 

X

Yes, no food will be prepared but pizzas donated by a local business
and served from a warmer along with canned soda and bottled water.

X

X

X

X

X
Generators will be provided by private party

x



Special Events AfiplicalJon - Rgviglon Æ16 Page 6 

Application Check List (failure to provlde necessary documentation will delay appllcation revIew and approval) 

I have attached the following items: 

    (   )  Completed Application 

 (   )  Event Map (includes detailed event layout for vendors, rides, booths, electrical needs, etc.)  

    (    )  Detailed Plan showing road closures, sidewalk use, etc. 
    (    )  Certificate of Insurance and Indemnification (due to City Manager’s Office within 1 week following notice of event approval) 
    (    )  Insurance Policy endorsement (due to City Manager’s Office within 1 week following notice of event approval)

    (    )   Event Signage (description)  

    (    )   Driver’s License of applicant 

If document is missing, please explain: 

The applicant and sponsoring organization understands and agrees to: 

Provide a certificate of insurance with all coverages deemed necessary for this event, name the City of St. Ignace as an additional 
insured on all applicable polies, provide a separate copy of the insurance policy Endorsement, and submit the required 
documents to the City Manager’s Office no later than one week following notice of event approval. 

Execute an Indemnification Agreement on the sponsoring organizations letterhead and submit it to the City Manager’s Office no 
later than one week following notice of the event approval. 

Comply with all City and County ordinances and applicable State laws, City policies and acknowledges that the special events 
permit does not relieve the applicant or sponsoring organization from meeting any application requirements of law or other public 
bodies or agencies; 

Promptly pay any billing for City services which may be rendered or deemed necessary as part of the event and event approval. 

Applicant and sponsoring organization further understands the approval of this special event may include additional requirements 
and/or limitations based on the City’s review of this application, in accordance with the City's Special Events Policy. The 
applicant and sponsoring organization understands that it may be necessary to meet with City staff during the review of this 
application and that City Council approval may be necessary. The applicant agrees the sponsoring organization will operate the 
event in conformance with the written approval. 

Applicant understands that he/she (or the sponsoring organization) is responsible for contacting the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission and/or the County Health Department to secure any and all permits required for this event. 

As the duly authorized agent of the sponsoring organization, I hereby apply for approval of this Special Event and affirm the above 
understandings. The information provided on this application is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. 

Applicant Signature Date 

Co-Applicant Signature Date 
Complète this application and return it, along with all required documentation, to the City 

Manager’s Office at  least  21 calendar days prior to the starting date of the event. Please note 
that a new application must be submitted each year. 

Receipt Date 

8/7/23



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-30  

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE FALL FEST & PUMPKIN ROLL 2023 
 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by _____, supported by _____: 
 

WHEREAS: the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce requests permission to conduct the 2023 
Fall Fest & Pumpkin Roll; and 

 
WHEREAS: this event requires the use of a portion of Goudreau Street and the Little Bear 

East Community Center parking lots; and  
 
WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code of Ordinances, “The Peddler’s 

Ordinance”, requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 
 
WHEREAS:  it is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by the City; 

and 
 
WHEREAS: the St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Chamber of 

Commerce does meet the criteria established in the various sections of Chapter 
22; now therefore  

 
BE IT RESOLVED:  the St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for Fall Fest & 

Pumpkin Roll 2023 on September 30, 2023; now further 
 
BE IT RESOLVED:  the St. Ignace City Council does approve the use of Goudreau Street and the 

Little Bear East Community Center parking lots for this event on Saturday, 
September 30th from 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No:    
Absent:   
Resolution declared 
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, August 21, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
           
____________________________________ 

            Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 



    LITTLE BEAR EAST COMMUNITY CENTER 
 

ST. IGNACE RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

275 MARQUETTE STREET – ST IGNACE, MI – 49781     /     PH:  906-643-8676 
 
 

              www.littlebeararena.com     /    recdirector@cityofstignace.com    /    recreation@cityofstignace.com 

  

 
CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION 

MEETING DATE 8/21/23 
 
STAFF: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVENUE / BUDGET: 
I am currently working with Scott Marshall regarding the Revenue Streams and Budgeting. It is a work in progress and together we will 
develop a cohesive plan that will provide a growth pattern for the facility to be beneficial and fiscally responsible, generating a positive 
revenue in the very near future.   
 
I am developing a better understanding regarding Grant Writing and have several at hand to apply for.   
 
Line Items on the Revenue and Expenditure Reports show that we are still awaiting funds from the Visitor’s Bureau ($40,000), St. Ignace 
Hockey Association (+/- $10,000), Hockey Tournament (+/- $10,000). 
 
We are missing out on valuable dollars in regards to Advertising Rentals.  I am organizing an agenda to contact current businesses and 
organizations with existing ad boards and sponsorships that have not been paid for in quite some time. I will develop a pro-rated fee 
schedule to bring this last calendar quarter of 2023 current and establish a new price outline for the year 2024.  I anticipate great growth 
in this area of revenue. 
 
I believe with the new Door System for the Fitness Center we will generate more membership revenue.  The system is programmed to 
alert the gym member and the staff when the membership is up for renewal and payment is required.  It will also require non-members to 
see an LBE staff member to enter the building and pay for their day pass.  These efforts will generate Fitness Center Membership Fees. 
 
I am also working with Scott Marshall on how to outline the future Capital Budget needs and will update Council appropriately when that 
budget is ready for review. 
 

 

 

RECREATION/FACILITY DIRECTOR: 
CATHY LAMB 

SALARIED 

MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN: 
MARK PAGE 

FULL TIME SEASONAL 

OFFICE/RECREATION ASSISTANT: 
STEPHENIE FULGENZI  
FULL TIME SEASONAL 

ATTENDANT: 
CATHI BIALK 
PART TIME 

ATTENDANT: 
PAUL FERGUSON 

PART TIME 

ATTENDANT: 
KACEY FITZPATRICK 

PART TIME 

ATTENDANT: 
POSITION OPEN 

PART TIME 

ATTENDANT: 
ETHAN SHEPARD 

SEASONAL SUMMER 

ATTENDANT: 
POSITION OPENED 
SEASONAL WINTER 

VOLUNTEERS: 
 AS NEEDED PER 

SEASON / PROJECT 

http://www.littlebeararena.com/
mailto:recdirector@cityofstignace.com


ONGOING PROJECTS: 
• Adult Co-Ed Drop-In Softball 

• Flag Football Season / Followed by Travel Flag Football  

• Starting a Sideline Cheerleading Team that will coincide with Flag Football 

• Preparing for Hockey Tournaments / SIHA Season 

• Fab Fridays - Set up a Regular Schedule (working with Mackinac Couty Roundtable for Sponsorship) 

• Indoor Pickleball in September 

• Continued Organization and Clean-up of Facility and Grounds 

• Developing More Recreation Programs that are not “Sports Related” – Craft nights, Family Fun Game Night, Movie Night, 

Tutoring Sessions with Laselle High School NHS Members, Community Youth Volunteer Group 

 

UPCOMING PROJECTS:  
• Repair of Fitness Center Accident 

• Getting the Ice down – Last week of September 

• Training for Olympia Driving / Ice Resurfacing 

• Training for Skate Sharpening 

• 2023 Truck Show 

• 2023 Trek the Mighty Yoop 

• 2023 Survivor Auto Rally 

• Chamber of Commerce Fall Fest – Hosting Venue and Vendor Booth 

• Mackinac County Wellness Coalition Senior Expo – Hosting Venue and Vendor Booth 

• Convention Center Rentals to include Business Seminars, Training Classes, and Weddings, etc. 

• Having a Basic Life Support and AED Certification Class for LBE Staff with Mark Wilk - (extend to other City Dept. Staff) 

• Hosting Hockey Tournaments – 6 Planned Tournaments Currently with the hopes of Hosting a Girls Hockey Weekend 

• Put together a Holiday Craft Show and Demonstrator Event for end of November / Early December 2023 

• Preparing for Home Show 2024 

• Preparing for Little League Season 2024 

BUILDING/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE CONCERNS: 
• Fitness Center Accident Repair (Materials Ordered) 

• Pump Replacement (Parts Ordered) 

• Ceiling in Concession Stand needs to be replaced (would like to do a Drop Ceiling) 

• Ceiling Tiles in Lobby and Convention Center are beginning to bow and show wear and tear - all in need of replacement 

• Recreation Truck is not reliable (working with Bill Fraser to get a different truck from DPW once they get a new truck) 

• Creating a Preventative Maintenance Log for major equipment and building projects 
 

SUMMARY: 
Overall, I feel that I have created a positive work environment for the Recreation Department Staff at Little Bear.  The recreational 

programs are beginning on time and running as smoothly as can be expected.  Little Bear Community Center offers a clean, safe and 

friendly place for our community to gather, while offering our residents a variety of options to find a way to be active and social.  The 

Fitness Center is clean and inviting.  The Office is organized and running efficiently.  The Arena is primed and ready for the winter 

hockey season.  The indoor Concession Stand is ready to serve excited fans.  The outdoor fields and lawn are being utilized to host 

Recreational Sports on site.  The Parking lot is clean and free from debris.  I am proud of the many accomplishments we have had in 

the 3 short months I have been in my role.  I will continue to enrich and grow the recreation programs we currently have in place.  I am 

excited to develop new programs and recurring community events that will bring more commerce to our area while playing host to large 

venues in collaboration with the City of St. Ignace, The Chamber of Commerce, and the Visitor’s Bureau.   The future is bright for the St. 

Ignace Recreation Department and I look forward to the challenges put before us to make Little Bear the GEM of St. Ignace and put us 

back on the map as the Upper Peninsula’s Tournament Town again. 

 
 

 



























REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 1/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

6.61 1,356,493.00 89,681.85 44,777.26 TAXESTAXES
13.63 27,550.00 3,756.33 0.00 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
100.00 0.00 1,250.00 0.00 LICEENSES AND PERMITSLIC/PERM
100.00 0.00 27,500.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT
94.14 117,100.00 110,239.29 989.03 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 FINES AND FORFEITURESFIN/FOR
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 131,370.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

46.40 376,200.00 174,572.45 48,864.64 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

20.23 2,012,113.00 406,999.92 94,630.93 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
53.54 25,195.00 13,488.53 1,424.22 CITY COUNCIL101
42.62 169,600.00 72,283.75 2,010.01 CITY MANAGER172
15.38 32,650.00 5,020.00 495.00 ACCOUNTING DEPT191
0.60 12,900.00 77.51 12.01 ADMINISTRATION201

35.24 307,350.00 108,321.33 15,603.13 CLERK215
61.96 3,500.00 2,168.45 188.71 CENTRAL SUPPLIES234
65.35 1,860.00 1,215.45 258.36 BOARD OF REVIEW247
63.14 36,900.00 23,297.60 4,235.17 ASSESSOR257
19.87 8,620.00 1,712.86 0.00 ELECTIONS262
83.77 31,600.00 26,472.23 1,806.40 BLDG & GROUNDS265
81.67 40,300.00 32,912.59 2,496.24 ATTORNEY266
39.90 582,026.00 232,255.53 31,141.46 POLICE301
87.11 450.00 392.00 139.25 SAFETY & HEALTH335
55.91 127,785.00 71,448.27 10,943.84 FIRE DEPARTMENT336
50.88 141,350.00 71,919.07 20,651.46 PUBLIC WORKS441
13.46 505.00 67.95 67.95 SIDEWALKS444
64.03 38,000.00 24,330.01 3,378.63 STREET LIGHTHING448
225.93 3,000.00 6,778.01 4,417.50 PLANNING701
16.84 480.00 80.83 0.00 ZONING BD OF APPEALS703
57.32 75,450.00 43,245.98 32,000.00 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT704
32.92 103,875.00 34,197.44 11,676.10 PARK MAINT770
141.82 4,225.00 5,991.86 1,952.61 BOAT LAUNCH773
47.63 76,129.00 36,257.91 4,851.93 FRINGE BENEFITS953
93.01 16,300.00 15,161.12 0.00 INSURANCE & BONDS954
26.09 91,984.00 24,000.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

44.16 1,932,034.00 853,096.28 149,749.98 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

557.07 80,079.00 (446,096.36)(55,119.05)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

44.16 1,932,034.00 853,096.28 149,749.98 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
20.23 2,012,113.00 406,999.92 94,630.93 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 2/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS
Revenues

13.79 30,300.00 4,178.89 2,640.45 TAXESTAXES
50.00 6,500.00 3,250.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT
65.32 64,967.00 42,438.69 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 37,500.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

47.32 275,000.00 130,119.56 23,514.44 STATE REVENUEST REV
0.49 399,800.00 1,975.31 395.03 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

22.29 816,267.00 181,962.45 26,549.92 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
2.24 2,130.00 47.76 46.20 SIDEWALKS444

66.98 403,880.00 270,521.39 270,425.51 ROAD CONSTRUCTION451
43.98 64,090.00 28,188.29 1,885.55 ROUTINE MAINT463
88.40 4,670.00 4,128.47 3,145.57 TRAFFIC CONTROL474
52.29 117,850.00 61,620.99 0.00 SNOW & ICE CONTROL479
107.20 15,979.00 17,129.57 400.58 ADM & RECORDS483

0.00 5,115.00 0.00 0.00 SURFACE MAINT TRUNKLINE486
855.17 1,008.00 8,620.14 3,044.98 SWEEPING & FLUSHING TRUNKLINE488

0.00 1,518.00 0.00 0.00 DRAINAGE & BACKSLOPES TRUNKLIN491
80.57 46,527.00 37,484.67 0.00 WINTER MAINT TRUNKLINE497
0.00 116,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

54.93 778,767.00 427,741.28 278,948.39 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

655.41 37,500.00 (245,778.83)(252,398.47)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

54.93 778,767.00 427,741.28 278,948.39 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
22.29 816,267.00 181,962.45 26,549.92 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 3/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET
Revenues

4.37 92,716.00 4,052.89 2,640.44 TAXESTAXES
50.00 6,500.00 3,250.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 142,500.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

47.44 110,000.00 52,178.50 10,767.83 STATE REVENUEST REV
13.92 105,100.00 14,625.49 180.37 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

16.03 462,316.00 74,106.88 13,588.64 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.53 4,075.00 21.76 21.76 SIDEWALKS444

34.14 205,425.00 70,124.80 69,808.80 ROAD CONSTRUCTION451
49.11 144,250.00 70,846.03 6,727.58 ROUTINE MAINT463
71.07 4,075.00 2,896.23 645.82 TRAFFIC CONTROL474
92.41 52,150.00 48,194.24 0.00 SNOW & ICE CONTROL479
57.75 6,825.00 3,941.55 262.96 ADM & RECORDS483
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

46.36 422,800.00 196,024.61 77,466.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

308.53 39,516.00 (121,917.73)(63,878.28)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

46.36 422,800.00 196,024.61 77,466.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
16.03 462,316.00 74,106.88 13,588.64 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 4/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 271 - LIBRARY FUND
Revenues

10.31 85,584.00 8,821.50 6,853.91 TAXESTAXES
0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV

91.00 1,000.00 910.00 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 

57.61 2,500.00 1,440.29 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
61.89 114,979.21 71,163.05 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

40.20 204,813.21 82,334.84 6,853.91 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
53.68 220,908.00 118,590.96 12,289.73 LIBRARY790
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

53.20 222,908.00 118,590.96 12,289.73 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

200.37 (18,094.79)(36,256.12)(5,435.82)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

53.20 222,908.00 118,590.96 12,289.73 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
40.20 204,813.21 82,334.84 6,853.91 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 271 - LIBRARY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 5/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 273 - DOCK NO. 3  IMPROVEMENTS
Revenues

100.48 31,297.00 31,447.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

100.48 31,297.00 31,447.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
6.05 31,297.00 1,894.70 543.64 DOCK #3 IMPROVEMENTS598

6.05 31,297.00 1,894.70 543.64 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 29,552.30 (543.64)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

6.05 31,297.00 1,894.70 543.64 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.48 31,297.00 31,447.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 273 - DOCK NO. 3  IMPROVEMENTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 6/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 285 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 
Revenues

100.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

100.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
100.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

100.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 285 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT :



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 7/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 584 - GOLF COURSE FUND
Revenues

100.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
120.46 7,050.00 8,492.50 0.00 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
100.00 125.00 125.00 0.00 FINES AND FORFEITURESFIN/FOR

0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
53.24 161,375.00 85,910.00 12,736.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

57.53 174,750.00 100,527.50 12,736.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
53.28 172,248.00 91,766.90 41,028.80 GOLF COURSE OPERATIONS797
77.57 2,200.00 1,706.46 243.78 DEBT SERVICE905

53.58 174,448.00 93,473.36 41,272.58 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2,335.81 302.00 7,054.14 (28,536.58)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

53.58 174,448.00 93,473.36 41,272.58 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
57.53 174,750.00 100,527.50 12,736.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 584 - GOLF COURSE FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 8/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Revenues

58.30 524,727.00 305,890.44 43,678.20 TAXESTAXES
70.83 96,000.00 68,000.55 15,851.69 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
65.18 51,100.00 33,305.73 8,797.50 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 

57.73 568,371.00 328,122.61 85,488.69 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

59.22 1,241,698.00 735,319.33 153,816.08 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
31.55 122,760.00 38,732.66 5,042.86 SWR ADMIN540
64.79 386,891.00 250,655.67 45,915.70 SWR PLANT OPERATIONS541
41.13 89,750.00 36,918.37 4,553.60 SWR LN MAINT542
63.70 48,600.00 30,958.05 0.00 2010 USDA SWR IMP RR&I544
21.92 481,136.00 105,467.29 0.00 DEBT SERVICE905
78.01 109,361.00 85,313.85 0.00 SRF/ 5593 01906
0.00 51,800.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

42.47 1,290,298.00 548,045.89 55,512.16 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

385.34 (48,600.00)187,273.44 98,303.92 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

42.47 1,290,298.00 548,045.89 55,512.16 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
59.22 1,241,698.00 735,319.33 153,816.08 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 9/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

58.62 409,500.00 240,054.81 34,299.21 TAXESTAXES
55.74 478,000.00 266,457.14 74,811.42 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
63.48 79,300.00 50,342.24 12,019.92 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 1,800.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 

64.36 26,000.00 16,732.73 2,390.39 OTHER FINANCING SOURCESO/FINAN
63.87 298,159.00 190,432.97 34,926.80 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

59.10 1,292,759.00 764,019.89 158,447.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 177,653.00 0.00 0.00 SRF-STATE REVOLVING FUNDS223

34.64 138,715.00 48,055.05 5,977.86 WTR ADMIN550
57.51 486,550.00 279,813.12 36,824.96 WTR PLANT OPERATIONS551
46.52 241,000.00 112,115.07 14,636.98 WTR LINE MAINT552
100.00 0.00 47,948.97 28,782.77 2000 WTR RR&I553
91.51 167,241.00 153,047.20 47,109.70 DEBT SERVICE905
0.00 81,600.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

49.58 1,292,759.00 640,979.41 133,332.27 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 123,040.48 25,115.47 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

49.58 1,292,759.00 640,979.41 133,332.27 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
59.10 1,292,759.00 764,019.89 158,447.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 10/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 594 - MARINA FUND
Revenues

21.46 5,000.00 1,072.81 931.21 TAXESTAXES
100.00 0.00 2,250.00 0.00 CONT FM LOCAL UNITSCONT
45.45 102,700.00 46,681.45 33,687.31 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
0.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 

24.45 175,600.00 42,937.74 28,059.62 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
89.75 241,400.00 216,648.07 24,252.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

58.90 525,600.00 309,590.07 86,930.14 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
52.81 55,600.00 29,359.72 4,855.44 MARINA ADMIN590
33.12 299,476.00 99,173.98 49,681.91 MARINA OPERATIONS597
71.77 9,750.00 6,997.44 0.00 INSURANCE851
91.33 92,265.00 84,265.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

48.09 457,091.00 219,796.14 54,537.35 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

131.07 68,509.00 89,793.93 32,392.79 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

48.09 457,091.00 219,796.14 54,537.35 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
58.90 525,600.00 309,590.07 86,930.14 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 594 - MARINA FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 11/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 596 - GARBAGE COLLECTION
Revenues

60.30 1,200.00 723.61 101.35 CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS

62.77 123,000.00 77,203.10 11,119.70 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

60.31 129,200.00 77,926.71 11,221.05 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
61.10 122,000.00 74,542.37 11,105.71 GARBAGE COLLECTION528
0.00 7,200.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

57.70 129,200.00 74,542.37 11,105.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 3,384.34 115.34 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

57.70 129,200.00 74,542.37 11,105.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
60.31 129,200.00 77,926.71 11,221.05 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 596 - GARBAGE COLLECTION:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 12/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 641 - EQUIPMENT FUND
Revenues

86.02 7,000.00 6,021.24 (1,215.71)CHARGE FOR SERVICESCHG SERV
25.68 11,000.00 2,824.99 315.83 OTHER REVENUEO/REV
63.88 125,825.00 80,376.10 4,597.95 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
154.89 1,822.00 2,822.15 883.62 OTHER FINANCING SOURCESO/FINAN
60.76 169,205.00 102,815.40 12,193.60 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

61.89 314,852.00 194,859.88 16,775.29 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
104.50 52,227.00 54,576.80 1,495.43 GARAGE MAINT581
45.19 187,780.00 84,866.69 9,833.20 EQUIPMENT MAINT582
30.84 39,610.00 12,215.08 12,215.08 DEBT SERVICE905
0.00 23,948.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

49.96 303,565.00 151,658.57 23,543.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

382.75 11,287.00 43,201.31 (6,768.42)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

49.96 303,565.00 151,658.57 23,543.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
61.89 314,852.00 194,859.88 16,775.29 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 641 - EQUIPMENT FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 13/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 664 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT POOL
Revenues

0.00 12,900.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
0.00 18,050.00 0.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

0.00 30,950.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
74.57 30,950.00 23,079.98 1,090.92 CENTRAL EQUIP233

74.57 30,950.00 23,079.98 1,090.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 (23,079.98)(1,090.92)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

74.57 30,950.00 23,079.98 1,090.92 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 30,950.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 664 - OFFICE EQUIPMENT POOL:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE 14/14Page:08/18/2023 01:33 PM
User: ANDREA
DB: St Ignace PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2023

% BDGT
USED

2023
AMENDED BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2023

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 

07/31/2023DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 729 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST
Revenues

0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST AND RENTALSINT 
0.00 41,800.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFERS-INTERNAL ACTIVTRANS
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

0.00 62,400.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 36,000.00 0.00 0.00 ADMINISTRATION201
0.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 TRANS TO OTHER FUNDS965

0.00 48,000.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 14,400.00 0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 48,000.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 62,400.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 729 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST:

210.83 184,898.21 (389,829.08)(257,843.66)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

47.55 7,179,117.00 3,413,923.55 839,393.36 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
41.07 7,364,015.21 3,024,094.47 581,549.70 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS





 

 

STRAITS AREA EMS AUTHORITY 
Official Board Proceedings 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Straits Area Emergency Medical Service (SAEMS) Authority was held 
on Tuesday, July 11, 2023 in the St. Ignace Municipal Building.  The meeting was called to 
order at 3:30 p.m. by Chairperson Austin Kimberling. 
 
Members Present:    

Chairperson Austin Kimberling, Moran Township 
Vice-Chairperson: Eric Danielson,St. Ignace Twp.  
Treasurer Laurie Collier, Hendricks Township  
Ed Serwach, Brevort Township 
David Blake-Thomas, Trout Lake Township 

 
Absent:  Secretary William LaLonde, City of St. Ignace 
 
Others Present: Mark Wilk, Area Manager; and Ken Collier 
 
Consideration of minutes from June 27, 2023 Authority Meeting:  
It was moved by Mr. Blake-Thomas, seconded by Mr. Serwach, to approve the minutes from 
June 27, 2023 as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Public Comment – None. 
 
Board Reports: 

A. CLSS Financial Report – Mr. Blake-Thomas reviewed the past month of income and 
expenses that the Authority is receiving and paying. There were three incomes totaling 
$25,013.08 and expenses of $90,543.67, for a June loss of $65,530.59.  We finally 
received a P&L from CLSS.  For the period of Jan to May, CLSS reports a loss of 
$34,635.85.  .   
Mr. Blake-Thomas went over the Authority General Fund Revenue and Expenses, along 
with the Authority Capital Projects R&E, and the Authority Capital Equipment Fund R&E 
reports.  Mr. Blake-Thomas reported transfers for the power load that we purchased with 
$24,000.00 from the tribe and not using $90,000.00 from the capital equipment fund.  
Overall the long term finances are looking good. 
 

B. Operations Report – Mr. Wilk stated that since there was only a few weeks between 
meetings, there was nothing new to report. 

 
C. Financial Report – Treasurer Collier reviewed the current balance sheet showing a total 

cash balance of $1,089,138.44, of which $576,300.46 are unrestricted funds.  
Motion made by Mr. Kimberling, seconded by Mr. Serwach to approve the financial 
report.  Motion carried. 
 

Old Business: 
 

A. New Building Update: 
We have received our first invoice from Three Rivers for $71,160.00, of which 10% is 
withheld.  We owe $64,044.00.  Motion made by Mr. Kimberling, seconded by Mr. 
Serwach.  Motion carried.  Looking at a mid –December completion date at this time. 
 
 



 

 

B. Loan Update: 
First National Bank is ready to move forward with loan paperwork.  This will be for 
$1.44 million at 5.75% over 15 years with a 5 year ARM.  Closing costs will be 
approximately $10,000.00.   
 

C. Authorizing Resolution for Loan: 
Motion made by Mr. Kimberling, seconded by Mr. Serwach to approve board resolution 
2023-01 for the bank loan.  Roll call vote.  All yes, with Mr. LaLonde absent. 
 

 
New Business:  
 

A. Financial Outlook 2024-2027: 
Mr. Blake-Thomas presented a detailed presentation along with handouts showing end 
of year for 2023, and projected budgets for 2024 thru 2027.  This included purchasing a 
new ambulance next year and the debt service on the loan, along with reserves for 
future needs.  The projections are based on levying 2.0 mills in 2024, 1.9 in 2025, and 
then 1.8 mills in 2026 & 2027.  Mr. Serwach thanked Mr. Blake-Thomas for all of his 
work on the presentation. 
 

B. 2024 Millage Rate: 
Mr. Blake-Thomas asked that all board members to think about what amount we need to 
levy for 2024.  This decision needs to be made at the next meeting.  There was some 
discussion on how much to levy.  2/10th of a mill would generate about $80,000.00.  
There was some discussion about financing the new ambulance vs. paying for it all at 
once. 
 

Adjourn: 
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Mr. Kimberling, seconded by Mr. Blake-
Thomas to adjourn the meeting at 4:15 p.m. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
The next meeting will be held August 15th  at 3:30 pm.  
 
       __________________________________ 
              Austin Kimberling, Chairperson 


	01 Agenda 8-21-23
	07 8 7 2023 min
	09 B Audit 2022 graphs
	09 c Fall Fest & Pumpkin Roll 2023 Event App
	09 c2  Resolution 23-30 Fall Fest & Pumpkin Roll 2023
	09 D LBE Dept Update 8-21-23
	09 E DPW Garage Roof Replacement
	09 F Water Plant Chlorine Equip
	09 G Clerk-Treas Training
	09 I Financials July 2023
	10 Bills 8-21-2023
	13 B Straits Area EMS Authority 7-11-23 minutes Official



